
This is a business meeting of the governing body for the City of Herington. There 
is no implied or expressed right for persons outside the governing body to speak 

or voice their opinion unless specifically recognized by the chair. 

Regular Meeting 
January 16, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Call to Order

3. Public Forum

4. Approval of Agenda

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

5. Consent Agenda
a. Minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting January 2, 2024
b. First National Bank and Central National Bank as our official banks
c. Dickinson County News Times as our official paper
d. Engagement Letter for Lindburg, Vogel, Pierce, Faris for Audit services for the 2023 year.

6. Consider Request for Emprise Bank to Enter Payment Plan for Outstanding Hospital Utilities for
$18,218.14 for the months of November and December 2023. All bills will be paid in the future
unless 30 days’ notice is given.

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner Bell
Mayor Gares

7. Receive and File Department Head Presentations and 2023 Updates
a. Hilltop and Community Building Director
b. Water Distribution Department
c. Sewer Department Supervisor
d. Electrical Department Supervisor
e. Neighborhood Services Director
f. Police Chief
g. Fire Chief

8. Commissioner Comments

9. Adjourn

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

DRAFT



To join the City Commission meetings from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbvSBw6l4w85XQHSX0S1BXg Public Forum Comments can be 
dropped in the deposit box or emailed to cityoffice@cityofherington.com.   

DRAFT

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbvSBw6l4w85XQHSX0S1BXg
mailto:cityoffice@cityofherington.com


Regular Meeting 
January 2, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

The Herington City Commissioners met on the above date and time in the commission chambers at City 
Hall. In attendance were Commissioner Bell, Commissioner Gares, Commissioner Urbanek via phone 
and Commissioner McDonald. Absent was Commissioner Ben Castleberry. Also in attendance were City 
Manager Thatcher Moddie, City Attorney Brad Jantz, City Clerk Megan Lawrenz, Commissioner-elect 
Cynthia Naylor, Commissioner-elect Dalton Scarff, Street Superintendent Marcus Hawkes, Larry Mann, 
Chris McDonald, and Janet Wade.  

The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor Bell called the meeting to order. 

Public Forum - Janet Wade – 602 E Arnold, Herington, KS 67449 – Agenda item # 16 Sale of city owned 
property and agenda item # 20 Draft UPTICC. 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting December 19, 2023 – Commissioner Gares made a motion to approve 
the minutes from the Regular Meeting December 19, 2023, seconded by Mayor Bell, after discussion 
Commissioner Gares amended his motion to approve the minutes correcting that the City Attorney was 
not present, seconded by Mayor Bell. Motion carried 4-0. 

Approval of Agenda – Commissioner Gares made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Mayor 
Bell. Motion carried 4-0. 

Recognition of Commissioner Debi Urbanek and Commissioner Ben Castleberry 

Adjourn – Commissioner Gares made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mayor Bell 4-0. 

Call to Order – The meeting was called to order. 

Oath of Office Commissioner-Elect Cynthia Naylor and Commissioner-Elect Dalton Scarff. 

Appointment of Mayor – Commissioner Naylor made a motion to appoint Eric Gares as Mayor, seconded 
by Commissioner Bell. Motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner McDonald casting the dissenting vote. 

Appointment of Vice Mayor from Commission – Mayor Gares made a motion to appoint Robbin Bell as 
the Vice-Mayor, seconded by Commissioner Naylor. Motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner McDonald 
casting the dissenting vote.  

Additional Agenda Items – None. 

Approval of Agenda – Commissioner Bell made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by 
Commissioner Naylor. Motion carried 5-0. 

Consent Agenda – Commissioner Bell made a motion to approve the following consent agenda items: 
CVB Minutes October 25, 2023, seconded by Commissioner McDonald. Motion carried 5-0. 

2023 Year-end update from Street Department Superintendent Marcus Hawkes – 
January 2, 2024 
Department Head Report: 
Commissioners, 
    I am Marcus Hawkes, the Street Department Head. I have been with the City of Herington just short of 
five years. As my first full year in this role, it has provided many learning experiences. The Street 
Department, as it is generally referred to, is actually made of multiple parts consisting of street, cemetery, 
lake, and parks with five of us on staff. For both the cemetery and the lake we have one caretaker each, 
who’s most time-consuming job consists of mowing and weed eating. There are also other items such as 

DRAFT



digging and covering graves, filling fish feeders, and other general upkeep such as trees and trash. The 
remaining three employees work in the parks and in the street. A major portion of the spring, summer, 
and beginning of fall includes mowing the many city owned properties and mow notice orders. We also 
cut back trees in many areas to curb overgrowth. For the streets, we have been learning how best to use 
the new street patcher machine. This is being used to fill potholes and some other larger blowouts. We 
also work on drainage ditches and culverts, fill in and repair alleys and rock roads. We also have the 
street sweeper, which we are currently working on having three of us able to drive. These are just a few 
of the items that the “street” department works on throughout the year. There are also many odd jobs that 
we pick up as the year goes on. As needed, we help each other out. Three of us might be at the lake 
helping to take out a dead tree or bring a boat dock in for repair. There are also times when all of us plus, 
thankfully, those from other departments help. Such as, weed eating the cemetery for Memorial Day. We 
are there to help each other. 
    A few of the accomplishments this year are: The bathroom at the cemetery was completed and now 
functioning. Near Highway 77 a new EV charging station was installed. After the electrical department 
installed a new pole and ran electricity for the charging station, the concrete pad area was prepared and 
framed to pour. Again, thankfully, we had help from other departments on pouring day. This day also 
consisted of pouring four pads for new park benches in both Father Padilla Park and South Park. Another 
project is the walking trail connecting Logan Street to the Herington Schools. It was constructed along C 
Street and through the right of way property to the north up to the parking lot. A walkable surface was 
laid, and a new drainage culvert was installed. Grass will need to be planted and other clean up when the 
weather permits. Another good project has been starting the rough cut of a disc golf course at the 
Herington Reservoir. This project will take us into the new year.  
    For the next year we will finish getting the disc golf course ready for competition at the lake and 
improve the one in the Father Padilla Park area. Also, in the Father Padilla Park area we will be working 
on placing riprap around the pond to help prevent erosion. Another project that will be completed this new 
year will be resurfacing A Street from Trapp Street to Hawley. It was put on hold in 2023 because of 
weather, but preparation for the new surface, such as ripping out curbs, will begin in spring. There will be 
other small projects and whatever items the year brings. It will be another year of working to get better. 

Thanks, 
Marcus Hawkes 

Sale of City Commercial lot 18 to Krause Mechanical in the amount of $1 and authorize staff to execute 
and sign the Real Estate Contract. Consider updated request for City to cover closing costs – The 
Commissioners directed Thatcher to execute the $1 sale with the buyer paying closing costs as 
previously discussed and $25,000 for liquidated damages. 

Resolution 993 GAAP Waiver – Commissioner Bell made a motion to approve Resolution 993 GAAP 
Waiver, seconded by Mayor Gares. Motion carried 5-0. 

RESOLUTION NO. 993 

A RESOLUTION REGARDING THE WAIVER OF GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING 
PRINCIPLES AND TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENTS OF K.S.A. 751120a (a) IN THE PREPARATION 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE CITY OF HERINGTON, 
KANSAS, FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024. 

Standard Traffic Ordinance 1889 for Kansas Cities, 50th Edition (2023) – Commissioner Bell made a 
motion to approve Ordinance 1889, seconded by Mayor Gares. Motion carried 5-0. 

ORDINANCE NO. 1889 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING TRAFFIC WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
HERINGTON, KANSAS; INCORPORATING BY REFERENCE THE “STANDARD TRAFFIC 
ORDINANCE FOR KANSAS CITIES”, EDITION OF 2023, WITH CERTAIN OMISSIONS, CHANGES 
AND ADDITIONS; PRESCRIBING ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS; PROVIDING CERTAIN 

DRAFT



PENALTIES AND REPEALING ANY AND ALL OTHER FOREGOING ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH. 

Uniform Public Offense Code Ordinance 1890 for Kansas Cities, 39th Edition (2023) – Commissioner Bell 
made a motion to approve Ordinance 1890, seconded by Mayor Gares. Motion carried 5-0. 

ORDINANCE NO. 1890 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING PUBLIC OFFENSES WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMIITS OF THE 
CITY OF HERINGTON, KANSAS; INCORPORATING BY REFERENCE THE “UNIFORM PUBLIC 
OFFENSE CODE FOR KANSAS CITIES”, EDITION OF 2023, AND REPEALING ANY AND ALL 
OTHER FOREGOING ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

Updates to the UPTICC Program – Commissioner consensus was to move forward with the program 
while working on some revisions.   

Update for January 16, 2024, Regular Meeting – A reminder that Thatcher will be gone for this meeting, 
department heads will present their 2023 year in review.  

City Manager Comments – The Health clinic construction has begun, they received an UPTICC grant. 
Ampride variance passed. Casey’s is progressing. Staff have applied for state water grants, looking at 
applying for federal dollars as well. The trailer park owners are still working on the trailer park and are 
working on contracting out a demo company. The new building code and permitting has taken effect. Will 
be on vacation from 1/12/2024 to 1/21/2024. 

Commissioner Comments –  

Commissioner Scarff – None. 

Commissioner Naylor – None. 

Commissioner McDonald – Welcomed Cynthia and Dalton. Asked if the resolutions for the trailer park 
have an expiration date. Brad suggested staff should indicate progress in the minutes. Informed the 
community that he was a founding member of the new hospital board but has since stepped down. 

Commissioner Bell - Asked about the neighborhood revitalization, staff to check and make sure that 
everything has been finalized. Asked Staff to investigate a Trail grant that may have been awarded. 
Welcomed new commissioners. 

Mayor Gares – Thanked new commissioners. Asked for signage for the walking trail – worried that people 
are driving on it. 

Adjourn – Commissioner Bell made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Naylor. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

__________________________ 
Megan Lawrenz, City Clerk  

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Accomplishments in 2023 – Projects and replacements for 2024/2025 

Hilltop Community Center:  

2023 Hilltop Center Evaluation and Assessment-  

An individual on the NC-FH AAA board walks through the whole facility with myself, 
checking the building as a whole, proper notices for employees and patrons, the safety 
of all areas, cleanliness, up to code in kitchen, dining room, restrooms, food storage, 
etc.   

Our facility had an excellent assessment score! Letter included! 

Kansas Department of Agriculture and Food inspection-2023 

Yearly Inspection to keep in compliance for food license.  We had 0 violations, which is 
very rare for they usually find one or two even small things to ding a place on.  Cris 
Bayes is on top of our facilities kitchen and does a wonderful job and keeping 
everything safe and up to code.  

KDOT 2023 Audit on Public Transportation Bus-  

This audit is conducted every 3-4 years at each transportation site.  Auditors come, 
check all KDOT bus logs, reports, employees information including drug and alcohol 
procedures, financial logs, inspect the bus for any safety issues or items not updated.  

The bus is inspected by the KDOT Transportation Inspector once a year.  Both 
transportation bus drivers, Ron Gabe and Rick Hart are really great at helping keep the 
bus clean and doing pre and post trip inspections each day.  They both are very caring 
and always are willing to help out our customers.   

We had a couple small items that need to be completed within 6 months, but other than 
that we are in compliance.  The need for an infant seat which was addressed, we will 
either partnership with police and fire or purchase one ourselves. A grab handle is also 
needing replaced.  It is ordered and Dwayne Dittman will be installing that. 

KDOT SFY 2025 5311 Application Grant for Operation and Administrative Assistance 
was completed and submitted by myself in November 2023.  This application grant is 
written and submitted every year to insure operating assistance and reimbursement for 
the Herington City Public Bus system.  KDOT reimburses 70-80% for all operating 
expenses which include, fuel, insurance, advertising, maintenance, drivers payroll and 
some additional admin assistance.    

All facilities 

DRAFT



My department was without a reliable custodian for all the buildings for many months.  
With the new hire of B. Federle, we have been doing major deep cleaning here at the 
Hilltop Center, at the Community Building and the Homestead Village Apartments and 
also the City Office.  

The community building has been totally repainted within.  All white table and chairs are 
being deep cleaned and will take several months.  It’s a project that is worked on as 
time allows.  With the purchase of a new steam cleaner, the process is going rather 
easy and quicker.   

2024/2025 : Research for flooring company’s to replace, refinish and or strip and wax 
the Community Building concrete flooring and tile floors throughout the building. Looking 
at a sealant or epoxy for large floor.    

Both the Hilltop Center and Community Building kitchen hood systems were cleaned by 
a professional company out of Salina.  This included all vents and exhaust fans.  

The overhead hood system at both facilities were inspected by Air and Fire and they 
were both in compliance and alarm system at Hilltop is in excellent condition. 

In 2023 we were gifted with a donation for a new ice machine for the Hilltop Center. 
Other donations for the Hilltop and Homestead Village were several large shelf 
(storage) units.  Four units to be exact.   

At the Homestead Village Apt. and Hilltop Apt. all units are being updated for new 
tenants coming in.  It’s an ongoing process.   

Josh Alexander is the Maintenance Tech and does a terrific job and With the help of our 
SER maintenance assistant, Allen Nees, they both are working daily at getting all units 
updated, between snow removal, appliance replacements, heating and air unit 
upgrades, weather related issues and other projects that arise.  As apartments are 
being updated, we are implementing a replacement plan for all equipment and 
appliances throughout all facilities.  In 2023 we have replaced and updated the Hilltop 
Dining/Kitchen heating and air unit, a unit at the Hilltop and two units at the Homestead 
Village.  Also on the replacement agenda are new appliances.  As of the last year we 
have added several new refrigerators, dish washers, and electric ranges.  These are on 
a rotation process.  

At the Hilltop over 50% of lighting has been switched over to LED lighting 

At the Homestead Village a new concrete drive and parking area was replaced for a 
four garage area.  Other concrete work and low elevation areas are planned for 
upgrades in the 2024/25 year. 

 Homestead Village Clubhouse renovation/upgrade is on the 2024/25 agenda too. 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Water Distribution 2023 Accomplishments and 2024 
Projects 

My name is Cody Oswald. I have worked for the City of Herington for 5 years in the water 
distribution. In February of 2023 I took over as water distribution supervisor. 

Water Distribution has two full-time employees. The meter reader position helps in my 
department when they are not reading meters or doing their day-to-day duties. We are 
responsible for water and sewer lines including any repairs or new installations of lines and 
services. We also do all locates of water and sewer lines when someone calls dig safe.  

• For 2023 we finished our A street water line project. This included finishing hooking 20
water services to the new water main. Also, we were able to abandon 4 blocks of the
old water line and remove two old fire hydrants.  

• With the new Casey’s building being built, we had contractors install a new 4-inch water
main from the 800 block of East Trapp to the east side of the Casey’s. Where we also 
had them install a fire hydrant. Once they finished installing the main the city went back 
and hooked up 6 houses, 1 church and 2 meters for Caseys. That allowed us to abandon 
the old line the was feeding those houses. 

2024 Projects 
• Install a fire hydrant at the airport to help fill tanker 95. Installing this fire hydrant will

also help with fire protection. This project will consist of installing approximately 400
feet of 6-inch water line.

• I would like to start installing a new water line in north A street from Vine Street to
Chestnut. We see a lot of water line breaks in this stretch of line.

• Lastly, I would like to start installing more water meter radio reads. The city has had a
lot of the older water meters changed to the new style. This will help with the time it
takes to read meters for monthly billing.

DRAFT



   City of Herington 

City Manager and Commissioners, 

The Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) is operated by 2 full �me city employees Jason Alt and Cliff 
Stokes. Jason has been with the city for 24 years and has a Class 2 cer�fica�on in both water and 
wastewater. Cliff has been with the city for 11 years and is working on his Class 1 cer�fica�on. The facility 
runs 24 hours a day 7 days a week and the daily opera�ons of the plant consists of daily readings on 
influent and effluent flow, removing rags and other debris out of the system, was�ng sludge to the 
digester, dewatering biosolids and disposing of it on crop land, cleaning bulbs on the UV system weekly, 
monthly reports to KDHE and doing maintenance on all of the equipment. 

Our facility is an Ac�vated Sludge system which requires dissolved oxygen (DO) to break down the waste. 
The influent flow comes into the plant and the screw pumps li�s the raw sewage up 15� and then 
through a manual bar screen and then through a Parshall flume where it is metered. Next it goes to a 
division box where the flow is split 4 ways and then to the aera�on basin which has 4 zones. From there 
it goes to one of the two clarifiers to start setling out the solids. We return some of the solids back to 
the aera�on basin to keep the biological process going and we will waste some solids to the digester to 
get it out of the system. The solids get pumped to the screw press to get dewater. The clear water goes 
over the weirs of the clarifier to the UV system to get disinfected and then discharged into the creek. 

The WWTF was upgraded to aera�on in 1978 and all the major equipment is s�ll being used. We have a 
hard �me finding parts for the screw pumps. In 2020 we did phase 1 of the project and installed a screw 
press to dewater sludge instead of liquid applying sludge to the crop land. In 2023 we started the process 
of phase 2 of the project which will include replacing the screw pumps (3) with either screw pumps or 
submersible pumps, installing a mechanical bar screen for removing rags, installing (2) blowers for 
aera�on and all piping, valves and diffusers, DO probes in aera�on basin to monitor levels, a generator 
that will power all the facility, manure spreader and replace all the major electrical components. Around 
2030 is scheduled to be phase 3 of the project which will include new waste pump (1), return pumps (2), 
rebuild the clarifiers and upgrade the UV system. 

In 2024 we hope to have started the phase 2 upgrades because the equipment is old and wore out. If 
you have �me someday stop by the facility and we will give you a tour. 

Jason Alt 

Wastewater Supervisor 

DRAFT



Electric Department 
1/5/24 

 I am David Kahle, Electric Superintendent for the City Herington. I have worked for the city for 25 years. 
The electrical department maintains and upgrades the electrical distribution system. There are 3 full-
time employees in the department.  The meter reader position t is split between the electrical 
department and the water department. 

Daily duties include maintenance of equipment, safety checks on our PPE (rubber gloves, rubber 
sleeves) and making sure we have adequate supplies to complete the daily duties or projects. We take 
care of work orders and trim tree branches back away from the electric lines. We check on the 
infrastructure for damage that could cause an outage or potentially a danger to someone. This would 
include repairs poles, crossarms, transformers, secondary services to residential and Businesses. Our 
duties also include exchanging out old electric meters and updating them for new radio read meters. We 
should have all the electric meters replaced this year, providing we receive all of the meters this years. 
We maintain the camping pedestal at both lakes. The department is working to replaces all the street 
light over to LED fixture.  If another department is in needs help, we try to work with one another to get 
the jobs done. 

 Major accomplishments / projects for 2023. 

Installation of new EV charger station by Pizza Hut. 

Replaced a pole at alley entrance on Trapp Street and between Broadway and 1st street. The pole has 3 
different circuits on it. We were able to do this and keep all the customers on, which includes most 
uptown businesses. 

The purchase of a new bucket truck. It will be approximately 36 months for delivery. 

Approval for new controls for the existing generator and new generator. The new generator will take 
approximately 3 years to receive.  The city is working with KMEA to have the new generator and controls 
installed. The plan is to install the new controls sometime in June or July 2024. 

The installation of the walking path from Logan Steet to the school parking lot along N C street. This was 
in coordination with the Street Department to clear all trees and build the path. Lighting for the walking 
path was also completed.  

Projects for 2024 

Finish installing the underground electrical for the new Casey’s building.  Current completion is 
scheduled for the end of January. 

Replace the poles at the raw water pump house and update the metering for it. This will have to be 
coordinated with the water plant department. 

DRAFT



Replace the transformer poles behind city.  This will require the City Office and School Board Office to be 
without power for an extended time.  A shut down will be required, unless the work can be done on a 
weekend.  This project will require at least 2 days. 

Relocation for the transformer bull pin to the east side of electrical storage building will require 
concrete, and a fencer installed. I am working with the Water Department to relocate our storage of 
supplies from their current location.  

Finish the replacement of the South Broadway Island Street lights. This project started several years ago 
was put on hold. We have most of the material needed to finish the project. 

Continue replacing old or damaged poles in the distribution system.  We will concentrate on the area 
between Broadway and 1st Street, starting at Trapp Street north to Arnold Street.  

Continue to place porcelain cutouts in the distribution system. The porcelain cutouts are failing and 
causing outages.  Several other towns are experiencing the same problem. 

DRAFT



THE CITY OF HERINGTON  
P.O. Box 31 • 17 North Broadway  •  Herington, KS 67449 

  Telephone: (785) 258-2271        FAX: (785) 258-3552  

January 16, 2024, City Commission Meeting 

There were 107 complaints and 695 inspections for the year 2023. 

Grass Violations 
1. Implemented new grass ordinance.
2. 220 Grass inspections
3. 125 Grass violation written.
4. 53 Cut orders issued.
5. 43 yards mowed.

a. The city mowed 35 yards.
b. Contractors mowed 8 yards.

City Code Violations 
1. Wrote 27 violations. 

Building permits 
1. Issued a total of 148 permits with 201 inspections. 
2. Issued 49 building permits with 61 inspections. 
3. Issued 42 electrical permits with 59 inspections. 
4. Issued 16 mechanical permits with 24 inspections. 
5. Issued 31 plumbing permits with 49 inspections.
6. Issued 7 demolition permits with 7 inspections.
7. Issued 2 sign permits with 1 inspection.

Electrical Service turn on. 
1. 66 electrical service inspections

57 structural building inspections  

There were 5 dangerous structure hearings. 
1. 3 structures were ordered demolished.
2. 2 structures ordered repaired.

Worked with the Board of Construction, Trades, and Appeals for a new ordinance 
on licensing and fees.  
Helped with new ordinance for manufactured houses. 

901 E Arnold, Herington Park LLC 
1. Manufactured house on lots #1, #19, and #23 ordered to removed.
2. Owners also are removing manufactured houses on lots #10, #20, and #22.

DRAFT


	1.16.2024 Agenda
	1.2.2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Engagement Letter - Audit Services 2023
	Hilltop-HomesteadCommissionReportJan24
	Hilltop2023CenterEvaluation
	Water Distribution 2023 Accomplishments and 2024 Projects
	Sewer Dept. City of Herington
	Electric Dept. Update report to Commission
	Electric Department

	Neighborhood Services 24-01-01
	Neighborhood Services 24-01-01



